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Addendum No. 02 

 

 

Date:  

 December 9, 2025 

 

To the Project Manual and Drawings for: 

UK Kroger Field Lower Bowl Concrete and Waterproofing 

3187.10 

25130.00 

December 2, 2025 

 

Prepared by: 

THP Limited Inc. 

 

To: 

All Bidders  

 

This addendum supplements and modifies the Project Manual and Drawings for the above Project 

dated October 27, 2025, and shall hereby be incorporated into the Work as part of the Contract 

Documents. Bidders shall verify this fact by indicating receipt of the Addendum in their bids. 

 

Contractor Questions: 

 

Note: Questions 1 and 2 answered as part of Addendum No. 1. 

 

3. Question 3: Key Note 35 of 102A and 102B calls for the cove sealant replacement along the 

backside of all precast seating units. There is no existing cove sealant at this location. This is a 

significant amount of joint sealant if required. Please confirm cove joint sealant is required. 

 

a. Response:  

 

Cove sealant installation is NOT required at the backside of precast seating units (riser 

to tread transition).  Cove sealant is required at perimeter walls and aisle treads.  

 

4. Question 4: Key Note 29 of 102A and 102B requires the assumption of re-welding 700 EA 

broken seat to seat connections. If connections cannot be rewelded, a Unit Price 13. 

Supplemental Connection is to be installed per Key Note 30.  Since rewelding of brackets is an 

assumed lump sum item and not a unit price, how it be handled if there are substantially 

more or less connections rewelded? 

 

a. Response: 

 

This repair will be itemized on the project Schedule of Values.  The cost will be adjusted 

as a change order for added or decreased quantities based on the number of locations 

as compared to the itemized cost on the project Schedule of Values.  The change will 

factor in the cost for mobilization and demobilization of the welding contractor.  
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5. Question 5: Key Note 26 102A and 102B requires grinding an assumed 150 treads/slabs to 

eliminate differential elevations. Similar to Question 4, how will any credits or adds be 

handled? 

 

a. Response: 

 

This repair will be itemized on the project Schedule of Values.  The cost will be adjusted 

as a change order for added or decreased quantities based on the number of locations 

as compared to the itemized cost on the project Schedule of Values. 

 

6. Question 6: Regarding Liquidated Damages, is it fair to say that, for example if bleachers & 

existing membrane are not removed from the entire area of lower bowl by Phase A February 

28th deadline then contractor would be charged $1000.00/day? 

 

a. Response:  

 

Refer to Article 07, Liquidated Damages, in the Special Conditions.  Liquidated damages 

of $1000.00/day apply to the Contractor not meeting any single phase.  This applies to 

any or all of the project Phase completion dates.      

 

7. Question 7: For bidding purposes, should it assume that existing sealant is installed per 

industry standard and is properly cured out? 

 

a. Response:  

 

The only information known about the sealant is that it is more than 20 years old.  

During bidding, the Contractor may remove sample sections of sealant to review the 

condition.  Reinstall temporary sealants to prevent water infiltration to the area below. 

 

8. Question 8: In nested seating areas, is Vapor barrier required being it is an unvented slab on 

metal deck? 

 

a. Response: 

 

Yes, a vapor barrier is required in the nested seating areas. 

 

9. Question 9: 3.2 Preparation E. Membrane Removal 2.a. of Specification Section 071800 

requires Contractor to comply with all University, Local, Federal, EPA requirements for 

capturing, testing & disposing of hydro-demolition water. On past projects, the University 

required extensive daily monitoring/treatment of water for PH and particulates before 

discharging into the drainage system. Can the requirements/expectations of the University be 

provided? 

 

a. Response:  
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Contractor is responsible for directing all water to a sanitary sewer in the stadium.  

Contractor to follow all local, federal, and EPA requirements related to discharge. 

 

10. Question 10: The drains specified in some instances are not heel proof. Given that foot traffic 

will be going over top of these drains, what is the Engineer's recommendation? 

 

a. Response:  

 

It is our intention that all drain strainers are to be heel proof.  See images below. 

 

  
 

 

11. Question 11: Detail 28/303: Is there a drawing detail (not photo) for this repair? 

 

a. Response:  

 

There is no drawing detail for that repair. The descriptions on the photo detail provide 

the requirements for fabricating the plate and bolting it in place. 

 

12. Question 12: Key Note 1 on DWG 201: Can this equipment/mobile data be located to avoid 

damage? If not, can University provide photos of the space or access and contact for who 

maintains these?  

 

a. Response: 

 

No, the equipment cannot be relocated.  Provide protection as needed. You can email 

Donnie Mefford or Bob Williams for access to this area to review the required 

protection needs at Donnie.mefford@uky.edu or Robert.williams4@uky.edu.   

 

The contractor should consider keeping the existing membrane over the data room 

intact until they can schedule removal and reinstallation in a short time frame in order 

to not expose the concrete to moisture. 

mailto:Donnie.mefford@uky.edu
mailto:Robert.williams4@uky.edu
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13. Question 13: Who is responsible for scanning the slab/structural members as an example per 

Detail 18/302? 

 

a. Response:  

 

The Contractor is responsible for locating the embedded steel reinforcing via non-

destructive means. 

 

14. Question 14: Is the existing metal cap flashing to remain at side walls with sealant installed up 

to it? 

 

a. Response: 

 

The existing metal cap is to remain and new vertical sealant on the side walls will 

terminate up to it. 

 

15. Question 15: Some existing seating brackets have 3 or 4 anchors currently installed.  Please 

confirm that only 2 anchors need to be re-installed. 

 

a. Response: 

 

Provide two anchors to secure the bracket. 

 

16. Question 16: For the work in the tunnel, who is responsible for moving items out of the way? 

 

a. Response: 

 

UK will relocate items temporarily for the work.  The contractor is to provide a 2-week 

notice to relocate the items. 

 

17. Question 17: Bleacher removal. Grind existing bolts flush w deck surface after removal. 

Explain in more detail reinstallation. Are the brackets to be slightly shifted to misalign with 

existing bolts cut flush? Or are the embedded existing bolts to be "drilled out". Or cored out? 

 

a. Response:  

 

Brackets to be slightly shifted from previous mounting location to avoid the cut bolts. 

Refer to Detail 2/301 and 3/301. 

 

18. Question 18: Painting: Provisions for lead based paint abatement? Is UK aware of any on 

existing surfaces? 

 

a. Response: 
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Lead testing was previously completed in other areas of the stadium.  See attached 

report at the end of the Addendum.  The contractor shall assume the paint in the 

current work area is similar to the attached report and is responsible to take all 

necessary precautions.  

 

19. Question 19: Membrane waterproofing: Lower Bowl, aisles define? Is aisle only at 4ft step 

risers or does aisle mean horizontal thread length of seating area at ea row? Define 

 

a. Response:  

 

Yes, the aisle is defined as the 4’-0” wide step riser (vertical walkway between seating 

sections only). The horizontal seating rows are not included in this definition.  

 

20. Question 20: FP-1 is missing from this project’s spec book (bid docs were obtained directly 

from www.ukplanroom.com).  Please advise.   

 

a. Response:  

 

The Form of Proposal is a separate document, Tab 3 in the bid documents. 

 

21. Question 21: Who will make the determination on the seating clips that are in need of repair? 

 

a. Response:  

 

Potential repair locations to be surveyed by the Contractor and reported to the 

University prior to seating removal.  The University/Consultant is to make the 

determination of the seating clip repair needs upon review with the Contractor. 

 

22. Question 22: Please reference Page 102A, keynotes 29 and 30. Who/what is going to dictate 

which repair is affected? Same question on page 102B. 

 

a. Response:  

 

The primary base bid repair for seating-to-seating steel connections is welding per 

keynote 29. If the steel is heavily deteriorated that welding cannot be completed, then 

installing a supplementary angle per keynote 30 will be the alternate repair as a unit 

price cost. 

 

23. Question 23: Weld inspection(s)? 

 

a. Response:  

 

The University will hire an independent 3rd party inspector to review the welds. 
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24. Question 24: Who decides repair process? 

 

a. Response:  

 

The repair process is outlined by the Drawings and Specification.  Any questions during 

construction shall be submitted via an RFI. 

25. Question 25: Who decides which cast-in-place stair tread gets replaced? 

 

a. Response:  

 

See Drawing Note F explaining Unit Price repair items.  Contractor is to survey for unit 

price repair locations, and the University/Consultant will approve the locations prior to 

beginning the work.  

 

26. Question 26: Is it required to remove all existing membrane before application of new 

membrane? 

 

a. Response: 

 

All existing membrane (treads and risers) to be removed per Specification Section 

071800 Article 3.2 Paragraph E.   

 

27. Question 27: Can we use sand blasting to get material off the concrete if needed? 

 

a. Response:  

 

Sand blasting can be used assuming the concrete is not damaged which would require 

added preparation, the media does not spread outside the work area, and all applicable 

codes are followed per Specification Section 071800 Paragraph 1.4.A. 

 

28. Question 28: For Detail 7 on Drawing 601 for the 2 expansions joints on the lower bowl going 

up the risers is this just reinforced fabric on this with the coating going over to seal? 

 

a. Response:  

 

Detail 7/601 has a strip of uncured neoprene reinforcing at the expansion joints.  

 

Detail 9/601 has the polyester reinforcing at the other remaining beam lines / raker 

beams. 

 

Refer to edited detail as part of this Addendum per the Drawings section. 

 

29. Question 29: As far as the coating on the perimeter walls of the lower bowl, are we just to 

come up 4” onto the vertical and stop or are we to come up all the way on the walls? 

 

a. Response:  
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The membrane should terminate at a masked 4” turnup on the perimeter concrete 

walls of the seating areas. The remaining surface of the walls to receive a new concrete 

high-performance coating per the drawing notes. 

 

30. Question 30: Is the ground you are standing on when you go through the gate 4 entrance is 

slab on grade? I have no clue how to access the underside of the lower bowl for repairs if we 

can't have equipment over 2,000 lbs.  

 

a. Response:  

 

See Keynote 1 and 2 on Drawing 101 for the Main Concourse. 

 

The 2,000-pound load restriction references a single concentrated point load on Ramp 

4.  Multiple point loads of this limit could be utilized for equipment if engineered and 

spread out per General Note C.1.d on Drawing 002.  The Contractor is responsible for 

reviewing the structure and hiring an engineer as needed for equipment placement per 

General Note D.4 on Drawing 002. 

 

Project Manual: 

1. N/A 

 

Drawings: 

1. Modify Detail 7 on Drawing 601 as shown. 
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Attachments: 

1. Kroger Field paint testing results from Schneider Laboratories Global, Inc.  The report is dated 

December 13, 2024.  Sample was an exterior south ramp structure (KF-1, KF-2, and KF-3) and 

an endzone stair at the luxury boxes (KF-4 and KF-5) was completed to review the existing ice 

cream colored paint 

 

End of Addendum No. 02 
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